Committee Meeting

JOINT COMMITTEE ON AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE REFORM

“ Testimony from the Commissioner of Banking and Insurance
and invited witnesses’

LOCATION: Room 319 DATE: February 23, 1998
State House 10:00 am.
Trenton, New Jersey

MEMBERS OF COMMITTEE PRESENT:

Assembly Speaker Jack Collins, Co-Chairman
Senator John O. Bennett

Senator Gerald Cardinale

Senator Joseph M. Kyrillos Jr.
Senator Richard J. Codey

Senator John H. Adler
Assemblyman Paul DiGaetano
Assemblyman E. Scott Garrett
Assemblywoman Clare M. Farragher
Assemblyman Joseph V. Doria Jr.
Assemblyman Joseph Charles Jr.

ALSO PRESENT:

Thomas K. Musick Laurine Purola Tom Hastie

Office of Legislative Services Jarrod C. Grasso Tim Clark

Committee Aide Majority Saff Democratic Staff
Committee Aides Committee Aides

Meeting Recorded and Transcribed by
The Office of Legislative Services, Public Information Office,
Hearing Unit, State House Annex, PO 068, Trenton, New Jersey



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Elizabeth E. Randall
Commissioner

New Jersey Department of
Banking and Insurance

CynthiaL. Codella
Deputy Commissioner
Division of Insurance
New Jersey Department of
Banking and Insurance

Laurie A. Clark
Legidative Representative
Garden State Automotive Federation

Angelo Carnivale

Private Citizen, and

Former Manager

Automation Division

New Jersey Department of Insurance

Barbara Geiger-Parker
Executive Director

Brain Injury Association of
New Jersey, Inc.

David M. Myers, M.D.
Private Citizen

Christine Carlson Glazer
Vice President of Operations
University Health System of
New Jersey

W. Thomas Harper

President

Independent Insurance Agents of
New Jersey

Wilmar Biggins

15

81

89

95

104

115

128



TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

Secretary
New Jersey Urban Insurance
Brokers & Agents Association

Clinton Robinson

President

New Jersey Urban Insurance
Brokers & Agents Association

APPENDI X:

Remarks submitted by
Commissioner Elizabeth E. Randall

Testimony submitted by
Laurie A. Clark

Testimony submitted by
Christine Carlson Glazer

Testimony submitted by
W. Thomas Harper

Press release plus proposal
submitted by

New Jersey Urban Insurance
Brokers & Agents Association

Cover letter plus letter
from Jerry Reinfeld
Jerry Reinfeld Insurance
submitted by

Senate President Donald T. DiFrancesco

Cover letter plus letter
from David J. Lipsky
East Brunswick
submitted by

Senate President Donald T. DiFrancesco

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

141

145

8x

11x

20x

31x

33x

36x



APPENDI X (continued):

Page
Cover letter plus letter

from Phyllis Torry

Hasbrouck Heights

submitted by

Senate President Donald T. DiFrancesco

L etter addressed to

Senate President Donald T. DiFrancesco
from James E. McGreevey

Mayor

Township of Woodbridge

Press release plus attachments
submitted by John K. Tiene
New Jersey Insurance News Service

L etter addressed to

Members of the Joint Committee
on Automobile Insurance Reform
submitted by Dr. David Redlus
Cherry Hill

L etter addressed to

Thomas K. Musick

from Allan F. Mohr

Chief Operating Officer
Worldwide Auditing Services
& Rehabilitation Consultants

Imb: 1--50

dmt: 51--101
hw: 101--150
Imb: 151--156

39x

41X

49x

50x



ASSEMBLY SPEAKER JACK COLLINS (Co-Chairman): We
would like to begin today’s session. We would like to welcome all of you to
today’s meeting of the Joint Committee on Automobile Insurance Reform.
And the plan is, our last meeting in this fashion, at least with testifiers, and so
on, prior to us solving the problem.

Let me just point out, and | do this all the time -- and | have to say
that for the most part, | guess, in all of the situations, people understand what
we are doing here. What we will be doing today, as in each of the previous
meetings, is hearing testimony from people who want to talk. In the past, we
had particular areas of this so very important issue. Today, we have-- Some
people are coming back. We’re honored to have the Commissioner with us.
We also have basically a potpourri of suggestions and ideas that will bring
these public meetings with testifiers to a close.

All of this is being transcribed, and, as I've stated at each meeting,
as has the Senate President, that information is given to all of us. There are
members who are not here right now, will be coming in, and there are some
here who will be leaving. This is a Committee day, and a number of us have
bills to testify on, and so on. But | want to make it very clear, and | think
everybody understands this, that we get all of the information through the
transcriptions and, very honestly, through discussions with staff and our
colleagues. So | mention that, as you testify through the day, feel quite
comfortable that your comments are part of our decision-making process.

Just a short mention to all the colleagues. These microphones that
are around here are live, so if you want to say something nice about the

Chairman, whisper it loudly. But other than that, be careful. Okay.



And with that, our first witness today is the Honorable Elizabeth
Randall, the Commissioner of Banking and Insurance.

Good morning, Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER ELIZABETH E. RANDALL: Good
morning, Mr. Speaker. Thank you.

Mr. Speaker, Senators, Assemblypersons, thank you for the chance
to be here this morning. While | don’t have anything | don’t think too
radically different to say this morning than that which I've said previously, |
do appreciate the chance to be here. Let me offer some comments on behalf
of the administration and the Department of Banking and Insurance.

By way of just a brief recap, you will recall that it was just a little
bit more than a year ago that we announced a plan to dramatically change the
way insurance companies do business here in New Jersey. The Governor, over
a year ago, announced her intention to terminate the automatic, so-called flex
increases, which companies, of course, have been receiving just for the asking
for many years. Today, with your help, the automatic increase is a thing of the
past.

July 1, 1997 marked the first time companies did not get the
automatic increase in rates. That one change alone, in my view, will help stem
the tide of the ever escalating rates that we have been witnessing. We were just
reminded of what that rate escalation means to drivers here in New Jersey with
the recent release of the 1996 nationwide statistics. And while the report is
always a full calendar year behind, it told us what we already knew. And that

Is that New Jersey rates continue to be the highest in the country.



So two things must be done: first, continue to stem that tide of
increases; and secondly and most importantly, let’s do something which
actually will decrease the cost of automobile insurance. The additional actions
that this Committee is poised to take will complete a promise of reform.
Again, some things of significance have already happened. The Governor and
this Legislature promised to advance the fight against fraud by hiring 50
additional fraud investigators, and you have delivered on that promise. We
will soon have 150 investigators at the Department. That is the highest level
of fraud investigators since the inception of the Fraud Unit back in 1983.

We have also insisted that companies make insurance available in
our urban areas. As the Governor has often said, “This is one New Jersey.”
The effort to increase auto insurance availability in our urban areas is well
under way. As part of auto reform legislation last June, you approved the
creation of Automobile Insurance Urban Enterprise Zones. | recently
announced 25 cities which constitute our new auto UEZ locations.

The regulations governing the UEZs will be published in the
March 2 New Jersey Register, but we have already notified all auto insurance
companies of their obligation to make insurance as accessible to our urban
residents as it is to our suburban and rural residents.

You and the Governor were determined to change the surcharge
system, and | report to you today that indeed that promise is being kept. New
rating regulations without surcharges will receive final adoption on March 2.
Each company must present a new plan for our approval no later than April 1.
As plans are approved, drivers will not see surcharges added to their bills but

will have a fairer evaluation made of their driving record and experience when



they are billed at the beginning of each policy year. With the reform
legislation signed last June, some very good things have indeed happened.
We’ve accomplished a great deal of what the Governor proposed, but we still
need to reach the most important goal of actually reducing the cost of the
premium.

The Governor’s Plan of January 1997 proposed to reduce the cost
by reducing fraud, containing fees paid for medical treatments, reducing the
number of lawsuits, and offering choices in coverage with guaranteed savings
attached to each choice. We continue today to stand behind those principles.

We know that reducing lawsuits, containing medical fees, and
offering consumers more choice in coverage can be done in more than one way.
In her State of the State message this year, the Governor expressed her
openness to any modifications of her program, as long as they accomplish our
original goals. | think you share the Governor’s view that four principles
should guide this Committee’s efforts. | would like to restate those goals.

1. Offer real, guaranteed savings.

2. Offer affordable, available car insurance for every good driver
on a statewide basis.

3. Minimize any cost shifts from the auto insurance system to the
health care system.

4. And finally, accomplish reform without encouraging additional
litigation and lawsuits.

On the specific topic of peer review, you’ve heard some conflicting
statements about PROs and how they differ or don’t differ from so-called

independent medical examinations. \We have proposed using peer review



organizations to eliminate unnecessary spending on medical treatment. These
PROs, as we call them, would not -- and | emphasize would not -- be hired by,
nor would they report to, the insurance companies. My Department would be
responsible for hiring an agent to manage the peer review system. The agent
would report to the Commissioner of Insurance, not to the insurance
companies. Medical professionals would be responsible for making decisions
about the appropriateness and necessity of medical treatment rather than
today’s arbitration system in which lawyers are used to make decisions about
medical treatment.

No company would be able to engage the PRO of its choice. In
fact, until it became necessary to exchange certain information, the insurance
company wouldn’t even know which peer review organization had been
assigned to its case. The function of PROs is to have medical practitioners of
the same discipline review their colleagues’ work and determine if it is
appropriate and necessary. They will not have a stake in whether they agree
or disagree with the treatment because the insurance companies will not be
hiring them or assigning them to cases.

By contrast, the independent medical examinations that you’ve
heard about, so-called IMEs, are indeed hired by the insurance companies.
Their function is to review treatment with a specific eye towards whether or
not the treatment being given should be paid for by the auto insurance
company. In disputed cases that go to arbitration, the IMEs act as hired
witnesses for the insurance companies.

While on the subject of medical bills, I also want to mention that

we are concerned about proposals which suggest cutting medical benefits to a



fraction of what they are today. Such proposals, on their face, seem to
contradict two of the Governor’s required components of reform, namely,
minimizing cost shifts to the health insurance system and, secondly, achieving
reform without encouraging additional lawsuits.

Proposals which would abolish or drastically reduce PIP for all
drivers would require those at-fault drivers who have no other health coverage
to ultimately seek charity care. It also would force drivers who were not at
fault to sue to have their medical bills over $10,000, let us say for example,
paid. Either way, the health care system would ultimately bear that cost. So
if you sue because you do have a legal case, it’s quite possible that the doctors
won’t get paid in timely fashion. If you don’t sue, because you really don’t
have a legal case, when your $10,000 of PIP coverage runs out, you’re going
to have to go to your employer’s health insurance. If you can’t get any relief
there, you are going to be a beneficiary of the charity care system.

I also would like to point out that we’ve taken a look at the
proposal to drop PIP from $250,000 to $10,000. Surprisingly enough, that
one move, in and of itself, would only save about $40 off the average premium.
| don’t think the majority would want to take the risk of being left somewhat
scantily insured on a medical basis, on a first-party basis, just to save $40 in
terms of their premium. Why is the savings so small? One would expect that
such a drastic drop from 250,000 to 10,000 would result in a more drastic
drop in premium. One reason that doesn’t happen is found in the entity
known as the UCJF, which, of course, publicly is perhaps not widely
understood, but is a mechanism which is certainly understood by the insurance

industry here in New Jersey. Even though we all carry the required $250,000



of medical coverage today through our own insurance policy, insurance
companies are individually responsible for paying only the first 75,000 for any
given insured’s accident bills. Any bills above 75,000 are paid by the company
and then forwarded to the UCJF for reimbursement.

Each year the UCJF, which is the Unsatisfied Claim and Judgment
Fund, estimates the amount it needs to reimburse medical claims for the
following year and assesses all the companies a share of the total. Basically, the
system is set up so that if a serious accident does occur not only your company,
but all the companies doing business in the state do share essentially in those
more catastrophic type of risks. And this is a well-known, of course, insurance
mechanism. It doesn’t really affect policyholders, but it is a pooling of the risk
for those more serious accidents.

When we, as individuals, pay our insurance bills, the cost of
paying for those bills above $75,000 is included in our individual premiums.
Even if we reduce the amount of coverage required today, we are still
responsible for the medical bills of those who were injured in the past up right
until the present day. Those are ongoing, very significant costs. The savings
by lowering coverage amounts today would be limited to about $40 because of
the tremendous obligation to continue to pay the bills that are currently in the
queue, and those obligations will continue, of course, for all those who are
injured until such time as they are deemed to have achieved a recovery.

Another suggestion made to the Committee is to eliminate
no-fault. As you know, New Jersey law says that no matter who causes the
accident, your own insurance will pay for your medical bills, as well as lost

wages. However, in exchange for this guarantee of payment without



consideration of who is at fault, we have agreed to limits on the type of injury
which allows us to sue for pain and suffering. And that is the give-and-take,
here in New Jersey, of no-fault.

Those who are pushing for this change suggest that reducing
medical payments to 10,000 and suing for anything over that is the way to go.
They also suggest that there be no limits, as are required today, on the reasons
an injured party can sue for pain and suffering. Although you’re not required
to have those limits today, about 88 percent of our drivers do pick the more
restrictive, so-called verbal threshold. And, of course, those who recommend
the abolition of no-fault would propose a scenario in which anyone can sue, no
matter how minor the injury, and claim that this change would save an average
of $150 per policy.

We do not agree with those estimated savings. | know they’ve
emanated from a look at states like Georgia and Connecticut. We do say that
for the 12 percent of New Jersey drivers who currently have a no-threshold or
so-called zero threshold, they pay more today. And if we were to totally repeal
no-fault, those people -- that 12 percent -- of the motoring public might
actually see some savings. But for the 88 percent of New Jersey drivers who
now have the verbal threshold with a limited right to sue, going to an unlimited
right to sue, in our view, would mean a significant increase in the cost of a
policy.

Our New Jersey-specific analysis shows an interesting statistic with
regard to litigation. That is that those who have no restrictions on their right
to sue are 3.4 times more likely to bring a lawsuit than those who have a

less-restrictive verbal threshold. If you remove all limits on lawsuit activity, it’s



our view that this will necessarily increase the number of lawsuits and the
intended legal costs associated with them. Then, it’s also our conclusion that
premiums logically will also increase. Because this proposal would neither
reduce costs nor discourage additional lawsuits, and therefore would not meet
several of the tenets that the Governor has laid out for reform, we have not
supported it.

Again, | think my comments may not represent anything
extremely different from what I've said in the past, but | appreciate the chance
to clarify our review and would certainly like to answer any questions.

SPEAKER COLLINS: Thank you, Commissioner.

Before | call on some of the members-- Maybe I'll bat cleanup.
I have a few questions for you, but maybe they’ll be touched by others. But |
do have just one point of clarification. | have before me your written
statement, and you, in giving it to us orally, made slight changes -- nothing too
major -- but | do want to ask you this. In the written statement, you said at
the end with regard to the elimination of no-fault -- the written statement says,
“And therefore would not meet the Governor’s and leadership’s goals, we
cannot support it.” What I think | heard you just say is we have not supported
it. Now, maybe I’'m just picking on words. Is the position of the Department,
at least today, that you cannot support the elimination of no-fault, or is it,
which | think is a more open statement -- what | think | heard you say -- we
have not supported it up until this point? Could you--

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: We have not-- | see no reason
why | would modify that today--

SPEAKER COLLINS: Right.



COMMISSIONER RANDALL: --because our analysis does not
agree with the analysis of savings that the proponents of the repeal of no-fault
have set forth. And, of course, unless we were convinced to the contrary, I
would maintain our position that we do not agree that the savings will be
achieved that the proponents of no-fault repeal have suggested to you.

SPEAKER COLLINS: Okay. Well, let me just say this, as | turn
to my colleagues, I've been through this-- We’ve had excellent testimony.
Some of it overwhelming, statistically, | think. But in my own feeble mind,
I’'ve been picking up two things. One, that if we were to do what everybody
says, people would basically drive for free with no insurance costs. Or two, the
one that really fascinates me, Commissioner, is we have a lot of almost
guaranteed savings if we can do this, but when we ask the next question, then
there’s always the vagary of, well, maybe we wouldn’t save as much. So we’re
going to continue to sift through this and, hopefully, come up with something.

Minority Leader of the Assembly, Joe Doria.

ASSEMBLYMAN DORIA: Thank you, Mr. Speaker, Mr.
Chairman. | wanted to thank the Commissioner for coming and for presenting
her testimony. | know that, obviously, she’s been working diligently to try to
deal with this problem of the cost of car insurance.

One of the questions for you, Commissioner. You speak here,
verbal threshold versus nonverbal, moving away from the whole issue of
no-fault, but rather, specifically, verbal, nonverbal, the traditional. And you
say that those who go with the traditional have a likelihood of suing 3.4 times
more than someone who goes with the verbal threshold. Is that correct?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: In New Jersey, yes.

10



ASSEMBLYMAN DORIA: In New Jersey.

My next question is, when you look at the actual costs, the actual
payout, not the number of times they sue, but rather the actual payout, again
percentage-wise because obviously the numbers are going to be different
because there’s significantly more people -- 88 percent choose verbal threshold,
12 percent choose the traditional threshold -- and in the comparison, what are
the numbers like? Because we’ve tried to get the answer-- Senator Adler has
asked that a number of times: What are the actual costs, rather than the times
they sue -- the actual costs for the traditional threshold versus the verbal
threshold? Because it seems like when we ask the insurance companies that
have been here, they automatically say, “Well, it should be higher, and we
charge this much more -- $250, $300 more -- on a policy for these people.”
But no one has been able to give us the actual statistics, and a number of them
has said that the Department has those statistics. So what I’'m asking you is,
do those numbers exist? Do those numbers exist and what do they actually
show? That’s what the companies have been saying.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: We'll certainly provide whatever
we have in the Department. We’ll make available and--

ASSEMBLYMAN DORIA: But do you know if they exist?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: | know the differential -- the exact
differential in any given company between what they charge you for
nothreshold versus a restricted right to sue. The actual difference in pricing is
something we have at the Department. So we can tell you how much more

expensive it is with Company A to have the full legal rights versus restricted
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legal rights. And we should be able to check that pricing on any of the 66
companies that write automobile insurance business.

ASSEMBLYMAN DORIA: And the filings that they give you
would then show the actual output of money to justify that difference in cost --
that differential.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: How the actuarial presentation
Is made | am not certain, but we can certainly share that with the Committee
and tell you what underlying information is part of that rate-pricing filing that
we have.

ASSEMBLYMAN DORIA: So that the claims, actuarially,
obviously-- The actuary-- Through you, Mr. Chairman, the actuary’s analysis
Is based on claims. So what you’re saying is, then, that the claims based upon
what you think -- and again | understand you don’t have it before you, and |
well understand that, and I’m not trying to put you on the spot -- that at least
logically the claims for those who actually have the traditional threshold should
proportionately be significantly higher to justify the increased cost that they
pay.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Yes, they should be higher. And
given the actual statistic in frequency of lawsuits, it being higher in what you
called traditional coverage, one again logically would think because they do
have more liberal lawsuit rights, they bring more lawsuits, there are more
settlements achieved, and they are entitled to bring lawsuits for lesser injuries,
in fact for any injury. So there are pain and suffering awards that would be
paid out, obviously, if you have traditional coverage, which would not even get

to court in theory if you have the verbal threshold coverage. So one would
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think that in logic, if you just tried to put apples against apples, that the
payouts, yes, indeed, are greater for people who enjoy more liberal rights to go
to court.

ASSEMBLYMAN DORIA: | would tend to agree with you
logically, but the question is nobody has been able to show us the actuality,
and that’s the issue. Now, one of the companies that’s been here present when
we’ve asked that question says that they gather those statistics, which seems
to be, to my mind, amazing. And that’s why I would ask if the Department
could provide us with those statistics. | think every member of this Committee
would like to see that -- the actuality that the cost is higher.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: We'll be-- We'll provide you with
everything that we have on that point, yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN DORIA: Thank you. Thank you very much.

SPEAKER COLLINS: Assemblyman DiGaetano.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIGAETANO: Good morning, Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Good morning.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIGAETANO: On Page 6 of your testimony --
just about the middle, a little bit below -- you talk about an exchange for the
guarantee of payment on PIP with greater limits on the type of injury which
allows us to sue, and that’s the true give-and-take of no-fault. In fact, no-fault
doesn’t address a pain and suffering suit, isn’t that right? No-fault is only for
payment of PIP claims.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: In New Jersey, as | define

no-fault, it is for medical payments.
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ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: Right. And the only limitation
we have to sue is if you choose the verbal threshold or if you don’t select the
unlimited coverage or whatever we’re calling it, is that right?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: So with no-fault for PIP and
with an unlimited right to sue, which we have right now, isn’t it true that
there’s no trade-off whatsoever? | mean, you suggest that there is a trade-off
for this guaranteed payment, but no-fault doesn’t even address that. No-fault
Is only your PIP coverage.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Well, | agree with you that the
definition of no-fault is certainly a threshold matter, no pun intended, but
that’s a critical issue to look at the outset is how we in New Jersey have defined
no-fault. And I would certainly concede that the trade-off that we, in theory,
| think that the Legislature, sought to achieve has not been achieved. | think
policywise there was a theory that there would be a trade-off, and that in
exchange for prompt payment of relatively generous medical benefits, one
might see fewer lawsuits.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIiGAETANO: Yes.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: And I’'m not sure that we’ve
achieved that trade-off.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIiGAETANO: What | was getting at though,
the initial sales pitch, as | put it, for no-fault wasn’t that you would give up the
right to sue. Because, in fact, no-fault was instituted in New Jersey sometime

in the early '70s -- | think around ‘72 -- and verbal threshold wasn’t passed

14



until sometime in the late ‘80s. So for 15, 16, 17 years, we had no-fault
without limitation on right to sue. So they’re are not mutually exclusive.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: And I-- Are you including the
dollar thresholds historically that we also had prior to the verbal? Because |
tend to think of the whole process as one that developed first with a lawsuit
right that was tied to a dollar threshold, and then we moved towards today’s
verbal threshold.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIiGAETANO: No. No. Actually, what I'm
trying to do is disconnect the two, because there is no tie to no-fault and pain
and suffering. No-fault is for your personal injury and your lost wages, you
know, the kind of hard-fact losses. And it really doesn’t address the right to
sue for pain and suffering. They’re mutually exclusive.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: I think you can have two separate
discussions about them. | do think that the-- And I’'ve been asked this
question, do we think -- is it our view that no-fault has worked? And my
answer to that question has been that to the extent that we have insured a
prompt first-party payment of medical bills to people, no-fault in that sense
has worked and has been somewhat successful.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: It's probably like my
handwriting, hard to read. (laughter)

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: This is my Deputy
Commissioner, Cynthia Codella--

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CYNTHIA L. CODELLA:

Good morning.
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COMMISSIONER RANDALL: --who obviously is very familiar
with the history of the issue, that’s why she’s here today with me -- makes the
point that there’s always been a threshold of some sort for years in New Jersey
in terms of a restriction.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: But you've always had the
option not to take it?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Yes. Yes. | think there’s always
been a choice. No?

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: No. The choice came
later. May 1? May 1?

ASSEMBLYMAN DIiGAETANO: Please.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: Thank you. If I can
clarify it a little bit for you. When-- No-fault is indeed a combination of the
two factors, Assemblyman. One doesn’t exist without the other. I’d like to
clarify that. The no-fault is the-- The premise of no-fault is that we are able
to get a prompt payment of the medical bills, with the purpose intended, as the
Commissioner mentioned, of being able to accept some limitations on the right
to sue.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: For pain and suffering?

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: That is correct. From
the beginning, the thresholds were different than they are today, but there
always has been a threshold. In the beginning, however, the thresholds were
relatively -- they were monetary amounts -- they were relatively low. And it
really wasn’t until we went to a verbal threshold that we began to have the

option of the choice situation come into play. So today one could simply say

16



that no-fault exists in this state, but for an additional premium, a policyholder
Is able to purchase the opportunity to have medical bills paid from penny one
and not have the limitations on the right to sue. But they would have to pay
additional, which they do, for that. So, basically speaking, the no-fault system
does indeed require both elements to be there. In essence, those were the zero
thresholds today. You don’t have any limitations -- have the opportunities, so
to speak, to get their medical paid from penny one and be able to sue for any
particular injury without having to meet any threshold. And that is a premium
coverage, so, therefore, they pay more for it. But, in essence, they’re almost
stepping partially out of the no-fault system to do so even though they still get
their medical.

When we talk about the issues of pricing, it’s very important to
understand that the pricing and the volatility of the pricing is based a lot on
the measure of balance between the two parts of no-fault.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIiGAETANO: | understand that, and | share
the Minority Leader’s sentiments on trying to ascertain what the actual
difference is in payout. Because, as the Minority Leader mentioned moments
ago, the testimony before this Committee is that the insurers don’t track that
information. Yet, the Department of Insurance allows them to charge a
premium for the difference. And | can’t imagine that we would do that
without actually looking at what the payout is separate and apart from the
verbal threshold, if you will.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: We will certainly,
carefully look at the ISO, the Insurance Service Office, statistics that we do

have in the Department, which are New Jersey-only statistics and try to
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develop that for you. But | might add this, if I may, to the analysis. I've had
the opportunity of sitting in to listen to some of the hearings, and | know that
there has been an indication that the cost of the payout on the cases in those
states, for example, that don’t have no-fault/have recently repealed no-fault is
less than the cost of the payout here. And that is, | believe, some of the core
that gets to your question, Assemblyman Doria.

It would seem to me that we have to-- | think it’s important to
bear in mind when we look at our analysis -- and we will try to produce what
we can for you in New Jersey on New Jersey because that has to be New Jersey
looked at. The reason | say that is, if | take the two most recent states, such
as Georgia and California, that recently -- I'm sorry, not California,
Connecticut -- that recently abolished no-fault, | see that the restrictions to sue
in both those states with the thresholds that they had were far less prohibitive,
if you will, than what we have here. So when the changes occurred, there
wasn’t a dramatic change as | think we might see here in New Jersey because
there is a dramatic difference between those thresholds. And | think that’s
important to keep in mind.

And the other part of it is that when it comes to the fact that we
would now be talking, and this is another part of this great change that would
occur and why it is greater-- We do have, you know-- It’s been proposed that
perhaps there should be this 10,000 med pay in correlation to the whole
process with an ability to sue without any restrictions. That would mean, of
course, that all of those bills that may be incurred -- whether they be medical
or lost wages, what have you -- would also have to be sued for after 10,000,

something that doesn’t exist today, which would be, again, a tremendous

18



difference. And all of those things, | think, do somewhat point to an increased
level of activity. The question is, and I think it’s one that you have all wisely
asked is, is that level of activity going to be enough to neutralize the increase
in suit? In other words, is there going to be a lower payout that occurs and
that level of activity somehow neutralizes this increase in suits? So that
essentially, that’s where you go with this. And | think that’s probably part of
the core question.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIGAETANO: We have had discussions in this
Committee and some testimony on the specific issue you raised. | think the
question lies in the attitude of the insureds. And I think some might say that
in order to take that position that you would have to sue for lost wages, etc.,
Is to take the position that the insurance companies don’t want to pay. And
I think in some claims, they don’t want to pay and will always continue to take
that position because they believe they’re right. But, at the same time, there
have been discussions that because of New Jersey’s penalty, if you will, or lack
thereof of a strong penalty, for nonpayment, that there’s been a suggestion that
Insurance companies, as prudent business practitioners, if you will, delay or
initially refuse to make payments which they might believe are somewhat
justified. And the reason for that is because they may be able to settle at a
lower amount or they get to use the money for an extended period of time.

Now, | guess, there has to be a decision made as to which one of
those you believe. Do they just not want to pay? Are they gaming the system?
And if the insurance companies are acting the way they should act, then most
people would say they are in other states. And | happen to believe they would

Iin this state, even with a fault system is -- the claims they feel justified, they
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would pay, and they would pay them promptly. The only question in my mind
IS, is there enough of a penalty -- and | shouldn’t say that there is a question
in my mind because you’re obviously familiar with the bill that | have
sponsored in this legislative session called the Bad Faith bill, which would
substantially increase the penalties for not paying a just claim. | think that
guestion has to be answered before | come to a conclusion that we’re going to
have this proliferation of lawsuits for just claims. And, by the way, for the
unjust claims, | think you should have to sue for that and incur the expense
and ultimately lose, if you’re bringing an unjust claim. You shouldn’t force an
insurance company to pay.

So | think that question has to be answered, but testimony has
been brought before this Committee. That’s obviously not a question unless
you wish to respond. | have a few other questions, though, if I may.

SPEAKER COLLINS: That wasn’t a question?

ASSEMBLYMAN DIiGAETANO: | didn’t phrase it as a question.

SPEAKER COLLINS: Just raise your voice at the end.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIiGAETANO: Commissioner, if I may, or
Assistant Commissioner, do we know of any state of the 50 that has what
everyone would classify as no-fault that has recovery from one’s own insurance
policy regardless of fault for all claims?

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: By all claims, do you
mean both--

ASSEMBLYMAN DIiGAETANO: All claims.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: Pain and suffering as

well?
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ASSEMBLYMAN DIiGAETANO: Everything. Is there any state
that does that, true no-fault?

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: That’s-- | do not know
of any state that does that, but I also am not 100 percent sure that would be
a definition of true no-fault either. The true no-fault, again, doesn’t
incorporate the payment for pain and suffering out of a person’s own policy,
just the payment for the medical and the ability to go after the responsible
party.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: | understand. But that’s the
definition that we--

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIGAETANO: --and maybe some other states
have given to no-fault.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: The answer to your--

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: No-fault in and of itself-- You
take the phrase -- means you don’t determine fault to get paid. You don’t need
to determine fault. So | pose the question--

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: No. The answer--

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: --what does that look like?

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: The answer is no. In
other words, the first part-- You’re talking about payments for benefits for
pain and suffering off one’s own policy.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIGAETANO: Right.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: And that doesn’t exist

to the best of my knowledge on any primary basis. If there are situations even
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here or if the other party is uninsured, that you can make a claim against your
uninsured motorist coverage for those pain and suffering.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIiGAETANO: Are there any-- Is there any
information that you can share with this Committee as to what that might look
like actuarially? What those costs might be if you simply said, let’s move New
Jersey to true no-fault, never have to determine who’s at fault, make all your
claims against your own insurance carrier, have a minimum insurance, buy as
much as you like?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: One of the things we expressed
a desire to support, as an option, was contained in the Governor’s original
proposal, and it really emanates from Senator Cardinale’s proposal that among
the choices that insureds would be given, one would be a pure no-fault,
first-party option.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: For all claims?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Yes, for -- inclusive of pain and
suffering.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: Right. Thank you.

Is there information at the Department that we might have
available to this Committee as to what the costs associated therewith would be?
What the estimated premiums would be?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: We haven’t worked out the
pricing. It would be a new, rather cutting edge approach to take, and we have
some models. There are some New Jersey experiences which might be helpful,
for example, the workers’ compensation system as it exists in New Jersey might

be a starting point for analysis in the cost.
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ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: Would you agree that that type
policy would substantially reduce the litigation in that you would never have
to spend any time determining who’s at fault or proving who’s at fault? You
would simply prove your claim and be done with it, so to speak.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Its attractiveness for many lies in
the fact that the pricing could be positively impacted through reduced
litigation because you would not be going to court in the classic sense of
bringing a lawsuit. And if that were to result in an expedited pain and
suffering award, that’s the attractiveness that many feel lies in that option, too.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIGAETANO: Commissioner, just two other
areas of questioning, if I may. The current reduction, as | understand it from
the policyholders, for switching one’s personal injury coverage to one’s own
health coverage is in the area of $30. Is that--

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: Yes.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Yes, $30 to $50 has been our
estimate. And actually, | think, only about 5 percent of drivers today exercise
that option to save some money by making their health care carrier primary.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: Is that because only $30 of
one’s policy is attributable to payments by the insurance companies in general
for personal injury?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: No, I don’t think that’s the case.
I think you would see savings be increased if more than 5 percent of the
motoring public actually took advantage of those savings.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: Why would we allow an

insurance company to reduce a premium only $30 if we chose not to be
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covered under that policy for PIP -- and I'm loosely classifying that -- why
would we allow an insurance company in the State of New Jersey to give only
a $30, or so, reduction if that wasn’t the amount that’s attributable to that
insurance company’s payout for personal injury? There should be an equal
and opposite charge or reduction, if you will. If you take it right out of the
policy, why shouldn’t it be commensurate with the amount they’re going to
pay out?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Well, again, there’s a relationship
between the number of people that are making that option and the savings
throughout the system, and that affects the actual price break that all the
participants would get.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIGAETANQO: If I choose to take my coverage
out-- If they never have to pay a dollar for my health coverage, why shouldn’t
the reduction be equal and opposite to whatever the charge would be, and that,
in and of itself, based only on what they would pay out for my injuries? |
don’t understand why we would allow that.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: We can provide you
very definitive proof on that because we have the analyses that were done early
on to determine what that should be because the choice was there. | might
add, though, that we still have the cooling effect, if you will, in terms of the
cost in the auto insurance system to the UCJF claims, that the Commissioner
mentioned in her testimony, that are figured into some of the pricing that

takes place here as well.
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ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: Why would we do that? Only
those participating in it should pay into it, or only those with the -- having the
availability should pay into it, shouldn’t it?

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CODELLA: Well, as I said to you,
we have the exact analysis for you that we can provide to the Committee, so
they can look carefully at that because it was done for that purpose.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: | would like to see that. If the
Chair would agree, 1'd share that with the Committee.

The final area is we’ve heard a substantial amount of testimony
that the real answer to New Jersey’s premium war, if you will, lies in bringing
additional competition to New Jersey. Some years ago, the Legislature acted
on a piece of legislation to put a pretty substantial restriction on an insurance
company’s ability to leave the state. I'd like to know what, if anything, is being
done in the Department -- discussions with other companies who either may
have left some years ago or never operated here and might be attracted to come
back here. And in those discussions, if you will, what are the reasons they give
for not playing in the State of New Jersey?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: To the extent the companies offer
any reasons-- Well, let me back up and say we have had interest. We
periodically get companies who are nationally active, multistate companies who
will ask us for information on how to gain entrance into New Jersey. And we
send them all of the information -- packet that they would need to make
application to begin writing insurance here. Sometimes we hear back from
them with further questions. Sometimes we don’t. So we’re not necessarily

always going to get a statement of a business reason as to why they decide not
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to exercise the option and file that application with us. Anecdotally, you’ll
hear that companies decide not to do it because of it not being an attractive or
profitable business decision for them. So it comes down to perhaps just a
financial analysis on their part and the projection that it’s not going to be
financially profitable enough, and that would certainly make some degree of
sense.

But we have certainly tried to be proactive in terms of making that
information available, and through the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners, our participation in that organization, we try and certainly
communicate to the companies if we’ve changed any of the rules, how have we
changed them. If there’s been recent legislative change like last July 1, based
on what you passed, we try and communicate that to companies in the
expectation and hope that they may become interested in coming here.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIGAETANO: Has there been any discussions
within the Department or with other companies as to specifically what they
might -- what might change their minds? | mean, obviously, there’s been some
change in the legislation. And, in those discussions, have they offered any
suggestions whatsoever, | mean, from them to you -- not what we might
hypothesize?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: There has been a lot of
commentary on the ability to come and go in our market, and withdrawing
from the marketplace is something which is a statutory framework which has
been established for a few years now. We do not prevent a company, once it
comes here, from leaving, but we do require you to go through a lengthy

process that takes up to five years total. We make you find a replacement
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carrier so that you cannot leave without ensuring us that someone is going to
pick up the business of covering all those drivers that you may have acquired
before you leave. So it’s a process which is comparatively described by some
companies as more cumbersome in New Jersey than other states.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiGAETANO: Yes. I've heard that as many
times as | have the territorial rate gaps and the take-all-comers aspect.

The final question on this specific issue is, are the other states, the
other 49 states of the 50 -- do they have such restrictive withdrawal regulations
or laws, or are we the only one, and if we’re not the only one, what do the
other ones look like?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: 1 don’t think there’s anything
that models ours. There may be some other states which would require
perhaps the effort to find a replacement carrier so that insureds are not left
totally out by themselves. But I think our mechanism is probably as extensive
as any state’s.

ASSEMBLYMAN DIGAETANO: Thank you.

SPEAKER COLLINS: Thank you, Assemblyman.

Senator Cardinale.

SENATOR CARDINALE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Initially,
I have a couple of observations, and then | have a series of questions.

SPEAKER COLLINS: Please.

SENATOR CARDINALE: The question has arisen here, and |
don’t think, with all due respect, that it has been fully answered -- the
interrelationship between PIP and bodily injury liability. Initially, when PIP

was, and the limits on the right to sue for bodily injury liability were placed,
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there were challenges. And the New Jersey courts used the interrelationship,
the trade-off, that because you got immediate payment on PIP, they allowed
the limitations on the right to sue that had been, even the very mild ones at the
beginning. They allowed them to maintain. Therefore, were you to deal with
just one of those, you would probably have to deal with both, not because of
the legislative act, but because of the rights that the court would deem needed.

It’s interesting that very often before my Committee people have
talked about the refusal by insurance companies to pay legitimate claims. That
their rates are backed by some sort of actuarial study which would make them
obligated to pay certain claims, but then they refuse to pay those claims. Now,
I would ask the Commissioner, would that not result in very substantial profits
for those companies if they’re collecting the premium and not paying their
obligation? Would they not have very substantial profits?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: If they’re successful in avoiding
obligations, it should boost a profit margin, yes.

SENATOR CARDINALE: Are there very many companies then
who are exceeding the limitation of 6 percent on profit that we have placed in
New Jersey?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: No. No. Not in recent years.
We’ve had the Excess Profits Reports come in every July 1. They must be filed
with us annually, and we’ve not found the companies, after we go back and
forth and satisfy ourselves-- We do the analysis under the Excess Profits law

and have not found the companies in violation making an excess profit.
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SENATOR CARDINALE: So, therefore, that practice can’t be
resulting in anything but perhaps maybe a control on premiumes, if in fact that
practice occurs?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Well, it certainly isn’t boosting
profits beyond the limitations of our law.

SENATOR CARDINALE: Thank you.

There has been -- and I’'m a little surprised at your answer-- The
analysis that was done with respect to the first-party pain and suffering
coverage. | can tell you that the analysis was done by my staff initially, and we
came up with 30 percent on the mandatory coverages as the saving. And I can
tell you that there was testimony before my Committee by State Farm
Insurance that said, were that bill to be enacted, they would love to do that
with a 25 percent reduction in premium, but they could live with the 30
percent. And they did some sort of analysis that led them to give that
testimony before my Committee. And it was my understanding that in the
Governor’s Plan some actuarial study was done with that particular option that
talked about either a 15 percent or 18 percent reduction in premium, if that
option were to be selected. And it would seem to me that -- | was told at least
-- at that time that an actuarial study had been done by the Department that
led to that number.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Are you talking, I think, about
the guaranteed savings that was attached to one of the choices?

SENATOR CARDINALE: The guaranteed savings attached to
what you called scheduled benefits, which is not exactly the same as my bill,

but was similar.
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COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Yes, we did have some analysis,
and the savings that we felt we were able to guarantee in accordance with that
choice came from a number of sources. It comes-- We can’t forget it comes
from the litigation savings, the way we would structure it, too, as well as the
institution of peer review, which was an underlying assumption in the
guaranteed savings as well. The institution of PRO we felt was also a part of
what got you to, | think, the 15 percent savings we attached to that choice.

SENATOR CARDINALE: Repeatedly, over all the years | have
been involved with the Committee dealing with insurance, there has been an
acceptance of the fact that approximately, on the bodily injury side --
approximately 60 percent of the cost to the insurance company is litigation
costs essentially, whether that be medical or testimony, whether that be
something -- whatever else. That for the insurance company to get $8000 into
the hands of an injured party costs $24,000. Now, that includes both lawyers.
So that it was that aspect, if that refreshes your memory, that could be saved
so that then both parties could be paid, even the party at fault could be paid,
and yet there would be a substantial saving left over.

I have some questions that arise out of your testimony. You
mentioned that you will soon be up to the level of 150 new investigators. Can
you tell us what they’re doing?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Well, we have an ongoing analysis
of the companies themselves, and part of our job, I’'ve always considered, is to
make sure that the people with tremendous resources, namely companies, are
doing their jobs in terms of the Special Investigative Units that they have. So

I think one of the significant things we were going to be able to enhance with
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the 50 new fraud investigators is the Audit Program of the 66 auto insurance
companies that we have doing business. Essentially, what we had found, going
back a year or so ago, is that on a random audit basis, it was our conclusion
that there were files that we uncovered in which payouts were being made
arguably too quickly and not enough was done to question a potential claim
which might or might not be proven to perhaps be something that shouldn’t
have been paid. So, in that sense, | think that one of the primary things that
| see the new Unit doing is beefing up that Audit Program.

SENATOR CARDINALE: So you’re going to use them to
investigate the insurance companies, but it seems to me that one of the chief
sources of fraud in our system -- and these are supposed to be fraud
investigators -- are legal mills and medical mills.

I can recall having testimony before my Committee under a
different administration where they set up certain operations within the
Department. And they took a bus and they took a car and they staged an
accident, and they found that there were police who were involved, that there
were lawyers who were involved, that there were doctors that were involved in
gaming the system because suddenly there were other people who claimed to
have been on those vehicles, who were filing claims that they were-- 1 can
recall a school bus operator coming before our Committee and talking about
how there must have been 400 people on this bus, because they had a flat tire,
that got into one of these mills.

Has the Department any plan to take a substantial number of

these investigators, put wires on them, have them go before some of these legal
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mills and medical mills, and document the transactions that are taking place
there so as to make an example of some of the dishonest people?

Before we get into putting limits on the people who are
legitimately and honestly injured, shouldn’t we be going after the people who
are ripping off the system, who are gaming the system, who are out-and-out--
A doctor not doing an examination. | recall, as a result of that that someone
from the Department appeared at this doctor’s office and saw the doctor in the
parking lot. And he said, “Just go in and tell the girl that, you know, you were
supposed to examine me.” Are you doing those kinds of things? And if not,
why aren’t you doing them?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: I certainly don’t want to leave the
impression that there’s a limitation on what | just described. We do
undercover investigations. We have for some time, and part of the resources
of the new 50 add to the previous 100 investigators there. There are two ways
to look at it. One is, yes, making the insurance companies in a preventative
way do their jobs on the front lines better. But for the actual criminal activity,
either civil and criminal-- But for the type of activity which you described, we
have worked, and continue to work, extensively with the State Police, the
Attorney General’s Office, actually -- most importantly -- the 21 county
Prosecutors’ Offices, as much as the Division of Criminal Justice, because the
county prosecutors frankly are very, very familiar with some of the actual rings
that might go on in their counties. And we’ve had a number of fairly successful
endeavors, | would say, this past year.

There was one in Jersey City, | think in the news within the past

few days, in which we worked with the Hudson County Prosecutor’s Office.
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The law enforcement personnel with whom we work are critical to us. But it’s
a very-- It’s a successful, highly cooperative effort, and we -- when we are going
to uncover or work as part of a sting operation, we don’t do it alone. We don’t
go out as just the Insurance Fraud Prevention Unit and coordinate it and plan
it. It will inevitably take place in one of the 21 counties, and we usually go to
that Prosecutor’s Office as a threshold matter and start working with them. So
the answer to your question is, yes, we do extensive work in that area.

There are some new criminal tools. | think most recently a
criminal law that was sponsored by Senator Matheussen, which is going to aid
us in the effort to actually bring some of those people to prosecution. So we
have more tools coming our way legally on the criminal side to prosecute those
rings.

SENATOR CARDINALE: You see, | don’t want to beat this to
death, but you have some tools available to you that the insurance company
does not have available to it. An example of that would be Allstate having
uncovered a whole series of these kinds of operations which were very
extensive and very widespread. The best that they could do was file a civil suit.
It’'s amazing to me that the Department was not in on that and indicting
everybody in sight, frankly, who was involved with all of those things, be they
the lawyer, be they the doctor, be they the false claimant.

And | think from what has come before my Committee, that’s a
very substantial problem in New Jersey. And it may be greater than the 15
percent that we talk about as being fraud. And | have seen in the past some
reports that have indicated that that may amount to as much as 40 percent of

what’s going on in the system. The hard and soft fraud that is getting-- And
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| think if people knew that your Department had 100 of its investigators out
all the time doing these scam operations, doing these sting operations, that you
would put a severe limitation on the legal mills and the medical mills, and you
would put the fear of God into the people who would tend to want to game the
system themselves as individuals by claiming that they were in accidents that
they weren’t in, etc., and so forth. But that’s a suggestion and--

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: 1 just want to mention that
publicly I give credit to Allstate or any other company that can pursue the civil
course of action very aggressively. We were involved in Passaic County where
Allstate did bring to light hundreds of people involved in potential fraud, and
we worked with the Passaic County Prosecutor on the criminal elements on
that particular fraud ring. It’s a big one.

SENATOR CARDINALE: How many people were indicted?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Ultimately, I think about 12, 15
people.

SENATOR CARDINALE: How many of those were lawyers?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: Sixty-seven
people were arrested in Passaic County.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: 1 don’t know how many have
been indicted. | know--

SENATOR CARDINALE: How many of them were the lawyers
who were involved in that ring? How many of them were the doctors included
in that ring?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: I-- There were some referrals of
attorney misconduct made to the Office of Attorney Ethics. | think, though,
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the arrests were the people who were involved in the actual operation,
day-to-day, of the ring. | don’t know of any doctors--

SENATOR CARDINALE: It’'s only anecdotal. It’s because of
what I've read in the paper. But | don’t think any lawyers or any doctors --
maybe one doctor -- have been penalized as a result of that. But it is also my
impression that without those professionals, the people who are bringing false
lawsuits in the hope of recovering a bodily injury claim for a bodily injury
which did not exist would be powerless to game the system. So that you need
to go -- not to all of the tentacles of the octopus, but go to the head. And if
you go to the head, I think then you will get someplace. And that is not going
to harm any honestly injured individual from getting reimbursement for their
claims. It may help them get reimbursement for their claims.

You talk in your report about peer review. And it seems to me
that the Department -- or that your attitude towards peer review has changed
a little bit. And that your attitude toward peer review has now come around
a little bit more toward the aspect of independence between the doctor and the
insurance company. This is a variance from what the original submission by
the Governor’s Office -- which | sponsored for this, as a matter of fact -- is, and
could you elaborate on that just a little bit more? How do you see that
working in some sort of detail?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: The-- These are some relatively
minor amendments, but there were changes in August, last August, made to
the administration proposal at that time. But really, all they've really
attempted to do was to ensure that independence and meet the criticisms by

some that peer review organizations would really just amount to people whose
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opinions were going to be beholding to the insurance companies and somehow
that sooner or later in the process the insurance companies would be successful
in somehow steering business or getting into a relationship with peer review
organizations of their choice. And to meet those concerns, we structured a
mechanism which was essentially more of a blind process designed to keep
some separation so that that cozy relationship, if you will, would not develop
because it would undermine the objective of peer review. They were not,
though, dramatic in the sense of-- | don’t think they alter the objective of peer
review.

SENATOR CARDINALE: So would it be safe to say that your
Department would now be behind a plan that an insurance company would do
its own little investigation initially and separate out claims that it believes, for
whatever mechanism they use, are questionable -- then submit those claims to
your Department. Your Department would then engage a peer review
organization to review those claims. For whatever methodology, they would
review them and then take that report back to your Department, who would
then report back to the insurance company. So that never would there be a
contact essentially of any kind of -- any sort of relationship develop between
the insurance company and the peer review organization. Is that the kind of
mechanism now acceptable to your Department?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: That's what we’re trying to
achieve.

SENATOR CARDINALE: Okay.

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: That we’re a middle person in the

mechanism so that-- Although at some point, of course, the insurance
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company has to know that there is a peer review organization by name with
named individuals to whom they’re going to be making their appeal. But they
wouldn’t know up front. They would have had no ability to choose who was
going to do the review.

SENATOR CARDINALE: You’ve had some discussion with
Assemblyman DiGaetano about the cost involved if PIP is dropped and the
cost involved if you lower PIP to $10,000. | happen to agree with your
numbers on the lowering to $10,000 because we did a staff analysis that was
almost identical to the number that you came up with. | think we came to 35.
You came to 40. The question that was apparent to us was not just the
Unsatisfied Claim and Judgment Fund, but another factor that | didn’t hear
you mention, and I’d just like to comment on it. And that is that most of the
claims are satisfied within the first $15,000. That it is the rare claim which
goes for -- not terribly rare, but it is a minority of the claims which go above
$15,000, and therefore, even though those claims are going to be very large,
there are very few of them, and that most of the money is a cost factor in the
first $15,000 of the coverage. It’s like the first dollar of insurance costs the
most and the second dollar costs a little less and the tenth dollar costs a little
less because of reaching those levels in the claims. Is that a major factor that
knocks down the saving when you go from the 250,000 to 10,000?

COMMISSIONER RANDALL: Right, that is, the lion’s share of
the claims are at a figure below -- I don’t know what percentage -- but all
studies concur that the vast majority of claims fall under the $15,000.

SENATOR CARDINALE: Even the trial lawyers, when they came

and testified before this Committee, said 85 percent of the claims would be
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satisfied with the 50 original proposals, which they had, which was 15. It’s
changed to 10 now. But they have come before my Committee any number
of times and said, “Why must we have all of this coverage, when 85 percent of
the actuals would be covered?” But, of course, then 85 percent of the cost is
in that first number of dollars.

The question arose earlier about what is the legitimate basis for the
higher premium paid by a zero threshold person as opposed to a verbal
threshold person. And I think that is a critical issue before this Committee.
It was my understanding, and perhaps I’'m mistaken, that the Department was
going to require, when those thresholds were set up, that there would be a
separate rating pool for zero threshold and for verbal threshold. Do you know
iIf that, in fact, th